

MAINE STATE LEGISLATURE

The following document is provided by the
LAW AND LEGISLATIVE DIGITAL LIBRARY
at the Maine State Law and Legislative Reference Library
<http://legislature.maine.gov/lawlib>



Reproduced from scanned originals with text recognition applied
(searchable text may contain some errors and/or omissions)

ACTS AND RESOLVES

AS PASSED BY THE

Ninety-fifth Legislature

OF THE

STATE OF MAINE

Published by the Director of Legislative Research in accordance with subsection VI of section 26 of chapter 9 of the Revised Statutes of 1944.

KENNEBEC JOURNAL
AUGUSTA, MAINE
1951

PUBLIC LAWS

OF THE

STATE OF MAINE

As Passed by the Ninety-fifth Legislature

1951

application. They shall preserve the application until the time set by law for the destruction of ballots cast in the coming election, at which time the application shall also be destroyed. The clerk shall keep lists of the names and addresses, arranged by voting precincts, of all voters filing applications for absent voting ballots or physical incapacity voting ballots and shall post copies of such lists for public inspection at each voting place. The clerk shall cause to be placed on the voting list, opposite the name of each person to whom an official absent voting ballot or physical incapacity voting ballot is mailed or delivered, the letters in capitals A. V.'

Effective August 20, 1951

Chapter 304

AN ACT Relating to Regulation of Posts and Wires.

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:

R. S., c. 46, § 31, amended. Section 31 of chapter 46 of the revised statutes, as amended, is hereby further amended to read as follows:

'Sec. 31. Permit to construct lines must be had from municipal officers or county commissioners; lines so erected are legal structures; proceedings and right of appeal. ~~No~~ Except as hereinafter provided, no such company, person or association shall construct lines upon and along highways and public roads, without first making an application for and obtaining a written permit, signed by the ~~mayor and aldermen~~ municipal officers in case of cities, the selectmen in case of towns, and the county commissioners in case of plantations and unorganized townships, specifying the kind of posts, where and how they shall be located and set, and the height of the wire above the ground; and if the line specified in the permit is a telephone line and is not constructed and public telephone service established in connection therewith within 18 months from the time the decision is filed, the permit shall be void. ~~Before granting such permit 14 days' public notice thereof shall be given and residents and owners of property upon the highways to be affected thereby shall have full opportunity to show cause why such permit should not be granted.~~ Before granting such permit, 14 days' public notice thereof shall be given by posting a true copy of said application in some public and conspicuous place in the town concerned and by publishing a true copy of said application at least once in some newspaper, if any, printed in the city concerned, or, if no newspaper is printed in such city, then by posting a copy of said application in some public and conspicuous place. During said period residents and owners

of property upon the highways to be affected thereby may file written objections to the granting of such permit with the municipal officers or the board of selectmen of the city or town concerned. Upon receipt of such objections the municipal officers or the board of selectmen shall fix a time and place for a hearing so that such residents and owners of property shall have full opportunity to show cause why such permit should not be granted. Such public notice shall be given by publication at least once in a county newspaper when the county commissioners are to act, ~~and in some newspaper printed in such city or town, if any, the last said publication to be at least 14 days before said hearing; if in a town and no newspaper is printed therein, then by posting the same in some public and conspicuous place therein 14 days before said hearing.~~ When the application for such permit is filed ~~personal notice, if deemed necessary, may be ordered by such officers and shall be given by such company, persons, or association to the residents and owners of property to be affected thereby.~~ At the hearing such company, persons or associations, before proceeding, shall first prove that such order of notice has been complied with and public notice given as hereinbefore required, and the adjudication of the ~~mayor and aldermen~~ municipal officers, selectmen or county commissioners that such ~~personal and~~ public notice has been given shall be final and conclusive. If from any cause the notice given appears to have been defective, said officers may order new notice, not exceeding 7 days, and adjourn said hearing to a time named in said new order of notice. If no written objection is filed as hereinbefore provided for, the municipal officers in case of cities and the selectmen in case of towns shall issue their decision granting the permit, and if such officers fail to issue said decision within a period of 7 days after the expiration of said 14-day period for public notice, the town or city clerk is hereby authorized and shall forthwith issue such decision in behalf of such officers, which shall be deemed to be the decision of such officers. The adjudication of the municipal officers or the city clerk in case of cities or the selectmen or the town clerk in case of towns that such public notice has been given and no written objection filed shall be final and conclusive. After the erection of the lines, having first given all persons interested an opportunity to be heard, such officers may direct or approve any alteration from the original permit. Such permits, specifications, and decisions shall be recorded in the records of the city, town, or county commissioners. ~~Posts and wires erected and maintained in accordance with the provisions of this section~~ Posts and wires heretofore erected, maintained and now in use by such company, person or association and posts and wires hereafter erected and maintained in accordance with the provisions of this section shall be deemed legal structures and the party maintaining the same shall be liable on account thereof only for carelessness or negligence in the erection or maintenance of the same. In case of

plantations and unorganized townships any person or corporation interested may appeal from the decision of the county commissioners to the superior court in the manner provided in sections 56 to 59, inclusive, of chapter 79, relating to highways, and in case of cities and towns as follows: the decision of the ~~mayor and aldermen~~ **municipal officers** or the selectmen shall be filed with the clerk of the city or town within 1 week from ~~their final hearing~~ **the date thereof**; and within 2 weeks from such filing any person or corporation interested may appeal from their decision by filing notice of appeal with a copy of the original petition and adjudication with the clerk of the city or town and with the clerk of the board of county commissioners; the commissioners shall immediately entertain such appeal and give 2 weeks' public notice in a county newspaper of the time and place of hearing, which time shall be within 30 days from the time such appeal is filed; such hearing may be adjourned from time to time, not exceeding 30 days in all, and the commissioners shall file their decision within 30 days from the time the hearing is closed, and transmit a copy of the same to the clerk of the city or town, who shall forthwith record it.'

Effective August 20, 1951

Chapter 305

AN ACT Relating to Depositing Rubbish on Another's Land.

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:

R. S., c. 124, § 17-A, additional. Chapter 124 of the revised statutes is hereby amended by adding thereto a new section to be numbered 17-A, to read as follows:

'Depositing Rubbish on Another's Land

Sec. 17-A. Depositing rubbish on another's land; penalty. Whoever deposits rubbish or garbage on land not his own, without the consent of the owner, shall be punished by a fine of not more than \$25.'

Effective August 20, 1951

Chapter 306

AN ACT Relating to Disclosure Commissioners.

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:

R. S., c. 107, § 24, amended. The 1st sentence of section 24 of chapter 107 of the revised statutes is hereby amended to read as follows:

'Such magistrate as described in the preceding section shall thereupon issue